
 

               

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes                                       Page 1                                               May 16, 2016 

Office of Board of Selectmen 
143 Main Street, P.O. Box 310, Belmont, New Hampshire 03220-0310 

Telephone: (603) 267-8300  Fax: (603) 267-8327 

 

 

 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

 

Monday, May 16, 2016 5:00 p.m. 

 

Corner Meeting House 

 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Also present were 

Selectman Jon Pike, Selectman Ronald Cormier, Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin, 

Administrative Assistant Cary Lagace, Public Works Director Jim Fortin, Kevin Sturgeon, Tom 

Murphy, Building Inspector Steve Paquin, Barry Beauregard – BPS, Librarian Eileen Gilbert, 

Library Trustees; Dianna Johnson and Mary Charnley, Lt. Newhall, media member Jim Clark. 

 

Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

Minutes 

 

 Selectman Pike moved the minutes of May 2, 2016 as written. Selectman Cormier 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Abatements, Manifests, Exemptions & Credits  
 

 Chairman Mooney moved to approve the abatements, manifests, exemptions and credits; 

seconded by Selectman Pike, unanimously approved. 

 

Library Trustee Request - Capital Reserve Expenditure 

 

 Library Trustee Dianna Johnson explained to the Board all the work that was recently 

done to the Library including the repair of a sagging floor, structural issues and repointing some 

of the brick work. She indicated that to this point they have funded all the work through the 

Duffy Fund, which has been approximately $111,000 which is about half of the interest income 

through the fund that they can use. During the recent work it was determined that there should be 

exterior perimeter drains installed to protect the structure from further roof run off. The estimate 

for the drainage work is $42,000 and they are requesting to fund the project out of the Library 

Capital Reserve fund in order to preserve some of the Duffy Fund balance for future generations. 

She noted that those funds aren’t being utilized at this point and there isn’t a plan for expansion 

being actively pursued at this time. They explained that the importance now is preserving the 

current structure. She noted that there is also an additional approximately $62,000 needed in the 

future for additional repointing.  

 

Selectman Cormier asked what they were going to do if funds are expended from Capital 

Reserve and they decide to pursue an expansion on the building, Mary Charnley indicated that 

they realize that they will have to bond such a project if they move forward with it in the future. 

Selectman Cormier asked TA Beaudin if the fund is set up so they can use the funds for this type 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 May 16, 2016 

of work, TA Beaudin noted that the account just indicates “Library Maintenance” so it can be 

used in this fashion. 

 

Following a brief discussion Selectman Pike moved to allow the use of $42,000 for the 

perimeter drain project at the Library out of the Library Capital Reserve account. Selectman 

Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously. It was noted that if additional funds are 

needed in the future the Trustees should provide an additional request to the Board. 

 

Police Department Detail Rate 
 

Chairman Mooney indicated that the Chief under the weather and not able to attend. TA 

Beaudin explained that he is not requesting a change to the rate but rather a change to the 

structure of the disbursement of the rate which would increase the Officers rate from $40/hr to 

$45/hr in an effort to stay in line with other communities. The billing rate will remain the same. 

Selectman Cormier commented that he doesn’t have a problem with the change but it appears we 

are overcharging for the cruiser compared to other communities, Selectman Pike expressed that 

he wasn’t concerned with what the Town is charging but wants the Town to remain competitive 

for the Officers.  

 

Selectman Pike moved to accept the structure change in the detail rate as proposed by 

Chief Lewandoski. Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Lt. Newhall – Report on joint project at the Town Beach 
 

  Fire Lieutenant Mike Newhall explained to the Board that they have been having issues 

in the area of the beach, railroad tracks and behind the mall to the Winnisquam Bridge with a lot 

of camping areas cropping up and they are leaving huge messes that include trash and drug 

needles. He explained that the Fire Department & Police Department went down and did a 

cleanup and found many needles in the area of the beach. There are 8-10 structures in the area 

that are currently housing approximately 16-20 people. Chairman Mooney asked if this is on the 

State property, Lt. Newhall explained that it is primarily State property but there is a stretch of 

private property there as well that they have been trying to reach the owner of in order to get 

permission to pursue moving them off of the private land.  

 

Lt. Newhall is proposing that all departments carry sharps containers and be trained in the 

proper retrieval and disposal of needles as they are discovered throughout the community. He 

proposed the development of a Town wide sharps protocol. He noted that they will leave a 

sharps container for staff at the beach once they are properly trained. He noted that once a week 

the Fire Department will sweep the beach area for needles. TA Beaudin commented that it 

certainly would be appreciated by Parks & Recreation Director Janet Breton as this has been a 

big concern. Lt. Newhall explained that training will be very important.as they don’t want 

anyone getting stuck, so they will train in prevention.  

 

Lt. Newhall noted that the change in population is frequent. Chairman Mooney expressed 

that she thinks a once a week sweep would be a good presence in the area. He explained that 

sharps container are purchased by Fire Department and are fairly inexpensive however, the 

disposal is costly but by Fire Department covers that expense too. Selectman Cormier 

commented that he has no issue with proposal, but wonders if there aren’t more permanent 

options available. Lt. Newhall indicated that there are no other options at this time. TA Beaudin 

indicated that the Police Department has been down frequently trying to move them along. 

Chairman Mooney expressed concern for when the new trail opens; TA Beaudin comments that 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 May 16, 2016 

the hope is that with more presence they may be discouraged from being there. Lt Newhall 

commented that it is State owned property so they can’t make them move. And they are just 

trying to keep cleaned up. 

 

Selectman Pike commented that he likes the proposal. It was noted that as long as the 

State continues to allow them to be there it won’t change. The Board agreed that they should 

send letter to Senator Hosmer with their concerns and the pictures provided by Lt. Newhall. TA 

Beaudin indicated that she would also send the information to the Chief of the ROW Division. 

The Board approved of the proposal presented by Lt Newhall.  

  

Future Engineering – RFP v. sole source vendor 
 

 TA Beaudin at the request of the Board at a prior meeting has reviewed the process for 

engineering firms on projects moving forward. The Town had previous done RFP’s for 

engineering on the Main Street project and the Pleasant Valley project, and if the Board 

recommends it, similar RFP’s can be done for all future projects. She does recommend 

continuing with the current engineer on the Ladd Hill Rd project as Phase III has already been 

engineered by Underwood. It was noted that the knowledge that they have developed of the 

community over the years has been beneficial, however it is important to look into more 

competitive options at times. Chairman Mooney believes that going out to bid at times helps to 

keep people honest TA Beaudin noted that the Town has utilized several different engineers over 

the years so there are others with knowledge of the community. Selectman Cormier commented 

that he thinks it is worth doing for at least the next couple of projects. 

 

Social Media Policy Adoption 

 

TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board a draft of a Social Media Policy that she developed 

with guidance from a policy that the Town of Exeter currently uses. The policy relates to the 

usage Facebook and other social media. She has distributed the policy to Department Heads who 

are ok with the proposed policy. She is requesting the Boards adoption of the policy. 

 

Selectman Cormier moved to approve the Social Media Policy as proposed. Selectman 

Pike seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

Expedition Bids 

 

  TA Beaudin advised the Board that she had received 1 bid for the Fire Department 

vehicle that was recently put out to bid. Bayridge Motors offered $555 for the unit which TA 

Beaudin indicated is temporarily on the road due to a temporary vehicle shortage. Selectman 

Pike expressed that he believes the unit is worth at least $1500 and offered that he would take it 

to the auto auction. The Board agreed to refuse the bid and have the vehicle taken to auction as 

soon as it is off the road. 

 

PEG Access Support Grant - Metrocast 

 

TA Beaudin explained that the Board that the Town receives .75 cents per subscriber 

which is approximately $1167 which can be used to promote public access in the community. 

LRPA has a live stream option, and will come in and supply a device that will work with our 

current equipment, to do live streaming. The cost is $1500 for set up and training and then $750 

a year there after. She indicated that she has had interest recently from members in the 

community in seeing meetings on TV; this will provide both TV access and internet. She is 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 May 16, 2016 

requesting to utilize those funds toward the live streaming option. The Board approved the 

request to utilize the grant funds to offset the cost for the live-streaming option. 

 

Other New Business 

 

TA Beaudin advised the Board that she received a letter of interest from Kevin Sturgeon 

to serve as an alternate on Conservation Commission. She explained that she discussed the 

request with Rick Ball and at this point there are no positions available on the commission. If the 

most recent appointed person is not interested in serving they will consider Kevin Sturgeon. 

Selectman Pike requested that TA Beaudin determine if the number of alternates has to be 

limited or perhaps they can add additional alternate positions within the commission. 

 

Sargent Park Bath House - Update 

 

Building Inspector Steve Paquin explained that he met with Mr. Jacobetz at State 

Corrections building program regarding the bath house for Sargent Park. He explained that they 

do a lot of work and their work is good. Their projects are typically cost plus 20% with a 10x30 

structure costing approximately $7,000. The unit he is looking to have them build would come in 

3 pieces. Mr. Jacobetz is willing to work with the modifications that Steve has made. Since their 

meeting Steve has reached out to Mr. Jacobs 3 times with no response.  

 

Chairman Mooney asked what the delivery timeframe would be; Steve expressed that he 

doesn’t know just yet as he hasn’t been able to reach him but he hopes it’s soon as he has a really 

good price on concrete and doesn’t want to lose. Steve noted that he is still concerned with the 

slope for the septic as to whether the slope is enough with a minimum use facility. Selectman 

Cormier expressed that he believes that the Town would be able to get the building this year and 

has asked Steve to work with him in getting communications from Mr. Jacobetz who is 

extremely busy. Steve noted that the plumber and electrician would do their work onsite work. 

He explained that he has no final figure at this time but will keep the Board posted as it 

progresses. 

 

Hoadley Road Project Loan Documents 

  

 The Board reviewed and signed the Hoadley Road loan documents. TA Beaudin noted 

that they will close on the note on June 1st, the pre-construction meeting should be the 3rd week 

of July and the project should be done by mid-September. 

 

Other New Business 

 

TA Beaudin discussed with the Board that the Town is entering into union contract 

discussions and the public safety group has met and discussed the option of an A unit and B unit 

within the same union. The Police Department would be group A and the Fire Department would 

be group B. The 2 groups would negotiate independently. They as a union voted to support this 

option. Selectman Cormier indicated that he has seen this before where they have one contract 

that applies to both groups and then subcontracts that apply to each group individually. 

Selectman Cormier expressed that it doesn’t matter to him but there are several items that pertain 

to each unit now and it needs to be made certain that those items remain with the proper group. 

TA Beaudin noted that the union has held its election of officers and Mike Newhall is the new 

chairperson. The two different groups will have individual presidents with Evan Belanger for the 

Police Department and Mike Newhall for the Fire Department. Additionally they will have their 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 May 16, 2016 

individual stewards and other officers. The Board indicated that they had no issue with this 

change to the union. 

 

Public Comment 

  

Kevin Sturgeon briefly discussed his desire to be on the Conservation Commission 

following a meeting where there was a lack of attendance and some issues couldn’t be addressed 

because of it. Additionally he talked briefly regarding the WOW trail/Bratt trail and Village spur 

trail and the new issues with enforcement that are now going to have to be addressed as well as 

issues with cows on the village portion of the trail. Selectman Pike commented that the village 

trail shouldn’t have the same issues as there will be no lake view. Kevin noted that he had 

spoken to Corliss regarding the cows and they feel barbwire doesn’t always hold them back so 

they are going to have to do something different.  

 

Mr. Pickwick asked if Senator Hosmer would be able to help with the homeless issue, 

Chairman Mooney expressed that the Board had discussed earlier in the meeting sending him a 

letter requesting assistance with the matter. He noted that he had been told not to go to beach 

when he first arrived in Town because of issues there, Selectman Cormier expressed that the 

majority of issues that existed at the beach before have been addressed and this is something 

new. 

 

Non-Public Session 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-

A: 3 II (c) at 5:56 pm; Selectman Pike seconded the motion. Roll call was taken Ronald Cormier, 

Jon Pike and Ruth Mooney. Also present was Town Administrator Jeanne. 

 

 Chairman Mooney closed the non-public session at 6:45 p.m.      

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

            

      Ruth P. Mooney, Chairman 

 

 

            

      Ronald Cormier, Vice Chairman 

 

 

            

      Jon Pike 


